
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN & LEARNING OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

7.30 pm 
Wednesday 
1 July 2015 

Town Hall 

 
Members 9: Quorum 4  
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Gillian Ford (Chairman) 
Carol Smith (Vice-Chair) 
Jason Frost 
 

Nic Dodin 
John Glanville 
Joshua Chapman 
 

Philippa Crowder 
John Wood 
Keith Roberts 
 

 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS: Statutory Members 
representing the Churches 

Statutory Members 
representing parent 
governors 

 Phillip Grundy, Church of 
England 
Jack How, Roman Catholic 
Church 

Julie Lamb, Special Schools 
Emma Adams, Primary 
Lynda Rice, Secondary 
 

 
Non-voting members representing local teacher unions and professional associations:  
Margaret Cameron (NAHT), Keith Passingham (NASUWT) and Ian Rusha (NUT) 
 
 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Agatha Williams 01708 432436 

agatha.williams@onesource.co.uk. 
 

Public Document Pack



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 1 July 2015 

 
 

 

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 
What is Overview & Scrutiny? 
Each local authority is required by law to establish an overview and scrutiny function to 
support and scrutinise the Council’s executive arrangements. Each overview and scrutiny sub-
committee has its own remit as set out in the terms of reference but they each meet to 
consider issues of local importance.  
 
The sub-committees have a number of key roles: 
 

1. Providing a critical friend challenge to policy and decision makers. 

 

2. Driving improvement in public services. 

 

3. Holding key local partners to account. 

 

4. Enabling the voice and concerns to the public. 

 

 

The sub-committees consider issues by receiving information from, and questioning, Cabinet 

Members, officers and external partners to develop an understanding of proposals, policy and 

practices. They can then develop recommendations that they believe will improve 

performance, or as a response to public consultations. These are considered by the Overview 

and Scrutiny Board and if approved, submitted for a response to Council, Cabinet and other 

relevant bodies. 



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 1 July 2015 

 
 

 

 

Sub-Committees will often establish Topic Groups to examine specific areas in much greater 

detail. These groups consist of a number of Members and the review period can last for 

anything from a few weeks to a year or more to allow the Members to comprehensively 

examine an issue through interviewing expert witnesses, conducting research or undertaking 

site visits. Once the topic group has finished its work it will send a report to the Sub-Committee 

that created it and will often suggest recommendations for the Overview and Scrutiny Board to 

pass to the Council’s Executive. 

 

 

 Terms of Reference 
 

The areas scrutinised by the Committee are: 
 

 Pupil and Student Services (including the Youth Service) 

 Children’s Social Services 

 Safeguarding 

 Adult Education 

 Councillor Calls for Action 

 Social Inclusion  
 



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 1 July 2015 

 
 

 

 



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 1 July 2015 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
   
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS  

 
 Apologies received from Councillor Joshua Chapman and Mary Pattinson. 

 
 

2 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

 
 Members are invited to disclose any interests in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting.  Members may still declare an interest in an item at any time 
prior to the consideration of the matter. 
  
 

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
  
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 

29 April 2015 and authorise the Chairman to sign them. 
 
 

5 FUTURE AGENDAS  

 
 Committee Members are invited to indicate to the Chairman, items within this 

Committee's terms of reference they would like to see discussed at a future meeting. 
Note: it is not considered appropriate for issues relating to individuals to be discussed 
under this provision. 
 
 

6 ANNUAL REVIEW OF CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL  

 
 Review any changes to the Corporate Parenting Panel post-election.  

 
 

7 LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT, RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION  

  
An officer will provide a report to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 1 July 2015 

 
 

 

8 SEN TRANSPORT  

 
 The Director of Asset Management Services will present to the meeting. 

 
 

9 ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
 To consider any other item in respect of which the Chairman is of the opinion, by 

reason of special circumstances which shall be specified in the minutes, that the item 
should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 
 

10 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 
 Future meetings will take place on: 

            9 September 2015 
            14 January 2016 
            15 March 2016 
            27 April 2016 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 

Andrew Beesley 
Committee Administration & 

Interim Member Support Manager 
 



1M 

 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CHILDREN & LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
Council Chamber - Town Hall 
29 April 2015 (7.30  - 9.20 pm) 

 
 
Present: Councillors Jason Frost (Vice-Chair) (in the Chair), 

Joshua Chapman, Philippa Crowder, Nic Dodin, 
John Glanville, Carol Smith and John Wood. 
 

 Co-opted Members: Emma Adams, Julie Lamb and 
Lynda Rice. 
 

 Non-voting Member: Ian Rusha. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Gillian Ford. 
  
The Chairman advised those present of action to be taken in the event of an 
emergency evacuation of the building becoming necessary 
 
 
78 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 17 March 2015 
were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

79 ANNUAL REVIEW OF CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL  
 
Consideration of this item was deferred until the next meeting on 1 July 
2015. 
 

80 TRADED SERVICES  
 
Officers had submitted a report on the work of Havering Education Services, 
a unified brand representing the London Borough of Havering’s traded 
services for schools. This was a full cost recovery non-profit making team. 
The current portfolio comprised 25 individual in-house teams which sat 
within different directorates. The majority of service providers enjoyed very 
good customer ratings and repeat purchases and they had a long history of 
supporting schools to bring about continuous and sustained improvements.  
 
Officers explained that the future plan was to develop models of trading for 
additional non statutory provisions across the council, including targeting the 
Early Years and PVI sector comprising of 200+ Early Years settings. There 
was also additional growth potential to be realised in the academy, free 
school, independent and sixth form college sectors both in Havering and 
out-of-borough. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee, 29 April 2015 

 

2M 

 

A hidden bonus of the service was that it enabled the Local Authority to 
maintain a presence, in the form of members of staff in schools.  
 
The Sub-Committee was advised that a Marketing Strategy was being 
developed. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report. 
 
 

81 SEND UPDATE INCLUDING PERSONAL BUDGETS  
 
Officers informed the Sub-Committee that back in 2011 the Government 
had published a Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Green 
Paper ‘Support and Aspiration’.  This Green Paper represented the most 
radical reform to special educational needs and disability for thirty years. In 
that autumn the Departments of Health and Education had launched a 
significant Pathfinder programme to test proposed reforms to the services 
and systems which underpinned support for children and young people with 
SEND. 
 
The Green Paper had now become part of the Children and Families Act 
2014 which had come into effect, with the support of all parties, in 
September 2014. A Code of Practice accompanied the legislation and 
outlined requirements for Local Authorities and CCGs when bringing in the 
reforms.  
 
Local Authorities were required to publish in one place a clear and easy to 
understand ‘Local Offer’ of education, health and social care services to 
support children and young people with SEND and their families. A test 
website had been developed in 2013 in close collaboration with parent 
representatives to ensure that the information was presented in an easy-to-
use and appealing format. 
 
A detailed policy had been drafted setting out how requests for inclusion on 
the Local Offer would be dealt with, as well as identifying where on-going 
responsibilities (such as responding to feedback) would lie. Havering had 
made greater progress than other local authorities. The challenge for 
Havering was tackling the 18-24 year age group. 
 
Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans, would replace Statements of 
Special Educational Need (SSEN) and Learning Difficulty Assessments 
(LDA). No new SSEN or LDA’s had been offered since 1 September 2014. 
The statutory assessment process needed to be co-ordinated across 
education, health and care. It was vital that the EHC plans reflected the 
views, interests and aspirations of children, young people and their parents.  
 
Officers had noted an increased demand for EHC plans across all age 
groups. 
 

Page 2



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee, 29 April 2015 

 

3M 

 

The Sub-Committee was assured that parents and young people would still 
be able to state their preferred school when agreeing an EHC plan.  
 
Officers advised the Sub-Committee that there were approximately 1,400 
SSEN to be converted to an EHC plan. This would happen over three years 
with priority being given to those young people at key year stages, i.e. 5, 7, 
11 and 16. Work had been progressing well and the authority was more or 
less on track. 
 
Under the new arrangements parents and young people would be able to 
request a personal budget when the local authority had agreed a statutory 
EHC assessment and confirmed that it would prepare an EHC plan. The 
aim was to enable parents and young people to have more choice and 
control over the services they need for themselves or their child.  
 
A Personal Budgets policy had been drafted and reviewed during a bespoke 
support session offered to Havering as part of the Pathfinder Champion 
programme.  
 
Officers were working closely with colleagues to ensure there would be a 
smooth transition from EHC plan to Adult Care Plan when a person ceases 
their education.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the progress being made to ensure a smooth 
implementation of the SEND proposals in the Children and Families Act 
2014. 
 
The Sub-Committee was advised that Dr Ahmad Ramjhum had been asked 
to undertake a review of the council’s Home to School/College Transport. 
The report set out the process to be used for the review and indicated that 
the review would commence this term.  
 
The Sub-Committee expressed some concerns. The previous review had 
caused many parents angst. The review would also look at how personal 
budget might offer parents a better solution. 
 
For some time the Sub-Committee had been seeking information on how 
the current provision was working. Specific issues raised were the length of 
time young people were required to travel and how often they were late to 
school because of problems. The Sub-Committee agreed that the Director 
of Asset Management Services be requested to attend the next meeting and 
answer all questions.  
 
Officers explained they were unable to give any firm commitments as to the 
outcome of the review. The service was under pressure through increased 
demand and facing a budget overspend, however, the authority did have a 
statutory duty to provide transport for those eligible. 
 
The Sub-Committee stated that the council should not underestimate the 
importance of smooth transport arrangements for those with difficulties. This 

Page 3



Children & Learning Overview & Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee, 29 April 2015 

 

4M 

 

was a significant issue for children.  Officers assured the Sub-Committee 
that any final Cabinet Report on the review would be supported by an 
Equality Impact Assessment. 
 
Officers would ensure the Sub-Committee would receive updates on 
progress with the review.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report. 
 
 

82 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  
 
The Sub-Committee received a full list of the current performance indicators 
for Children and Learning, and were invited to review the list and suggest 
any new indicators which they felt would add value. 
 
The Sub-Committee had several suggestions. Unfortunately the majority 
were indicators which the authority was unable to capture.  
 
The Sub-Committee asked officers to explore the possibility of including a 
Performance Indicator to capture the number of children using school 
transport who were late for school. Officers were also asked to write to the 
Secondary Academies to see if they were prepared to share with the 
authority the number of pupils progressing to higher education.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 4


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES

